_Earth Negotiations Bulletir
‘3 " AReporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/climate/cop6/tech_ws/lulucf/

Vol. 12 No. 140

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Thursday, 13 July 2000

HIGHLIGHTSFROM LULUCF WORKSHOP
WEDNESDAY, 12 JULY 2000

Participants at the SBSTA workshop onland use, land-use
change and forestry (LULUCF) met in morning and afternoon
sessionsto consider project-based activities and address general
accounting, verification and reporting issues.

PROJECT-BASED ACTIVITIES

IPCC OVERVIEW: Presentations: IPCC Chair Bob Watson
said thefirst question relating to project-based activities was
whether or not to include sinksin the CDM and, if they are
included, which onesto allow. SandraBrown, IPCC Lead Author,
provided information on, inter alia: devel opment of baselines,
which can be project-specific or generic, and fixed or regularly
updated; approachesto accounting for and mitigation of leakage;
permanence; and measuring, monitoring and verification of
selected pools. Watson noted that these i ssues must also be
addressed in energy projects, while observing that the question of
permanenceis considered moredifficult for LULUCF projects.

Question-and-answer session: In the ensuing question-and-
answer session, the EUROPEAN COMMISSION drew attention
to the possibility of leakage having positive effects. In responseto
aquestion on leakage by the NETHERLANDS, SandraBrown
highlighted the devel opment of “look-up tables’ for leakages
covering different types of tree species and based on market supply
and demand. The US underscored the distinction between the cost
and price of carbon, and said there may be opportunitiesto sell at a
significant profit. Brown stressed the current lack of aprice, since
thereisno market and the only information availableis on invest-
ment costs.

In response to a question by the US on baselines, Brown said
baselinesin some existing projects are now being revisited to add
field data. She noted that, with more projects, there will be added
incentive and datato develop generic baselines. CENTRAL
AFRICAN REPUBLIC queried what could be done to monitor
small-scale projectsin rural areas, and Brown said it wasaques-
tion of encouraging cooperation at alocal level, after which stan-
dard statistical sampling could be used. With regard to apossible
minimum areasize or carbon offset, she said several small projects
could be bundled into larger ones.

FINLAND drew attention to the complexity of the underlying
causes of deforestation, highlighting structural and socio-
economic factors, and questioned how much aproject approach
would actually addressthe wider problem of deforestation. Watson

replied that, whileit isimportant to identify the root cause and to
change policy and institutional frameworks, projects could be of
value and are the only feasible approach under the climate change
framework.

In responseto acomment by the UK on the possibility of using
sectoral baselines, Watson said this could be aviable option,
although it required careful consideration. AOSI S noted the poten-
tial benefits of projectsfor indigenous peoples.

PRESENTATIONS: Following the IPCC overview and ques-
tion-and-answer session, participants heard presentations from
representatives of Parties, NGOs and the busi ness sector.

NGO and business presentations: gino Emmer, Consultant,
FA CE Foundation, presented on the design and management of
reforestation projects, outlining the Foundation’s portfolio of
reforestation projects to sequester CO2. He emphasized the bene-
fits of certification and verification of forest management projects
and called for development of sound monitoring programmes.

Gareth Phillips, Société Générale de Surveillance (SGS),
outlined early experienceswith verification of land-based projects.
Highlighting theimportance of eligibility, he said SGS has devel-
oped itsown carbon offset verification scheme, including accept-
ability, additionality, externalities, and capacity. He suggested that
anumber of potential JI/CDM projects exist, and said these will
need to overcome challengesrelating to, inter alia: eligibility
criteria; accounting methodol ogy; and defining rules/guidance on
baselines. He recommended using average carbon capacity for
calculating stock changes.

KenMacDicken, Director of Research, Center for International
Forestry Research, presented on the opportunitiesfor rural liveli-
hoods under CDM forestry projects. He highlighted the dual
purposes of the CDM and outlined potential benefits and risk asso-
ciated with these projects. He emphasized theimportance of under-
taking social impact assessments. He highlighted the need for,
inter alia: incentivesfor multiple benefits; theinclusion of abroad
range of LULUCF options under the CDM; areduction in transac-
tion costs; the approval of tonne-year accounting; and strength-
ening of local capacities. He concluded that livelihood issues are
not areason to exclude LULUCF from CDM and that rulemaking
can increase the probability of positiveimpacts.

Bill Hare, Climate Policy Director, Greenpeace International,
spoke on land-use change and forestry activities under the CDM.
He opposed inclusion of these activities, stressing problemsrel ated
to: climate change mitigation, as every tonne of CO2 sequestered

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Emily Boyd <e.boyd@uea.ac.uk>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, and Chris
Spence <chris@iisd.org>. The Editor isLynn Wagner <lynn@iisd.org> and the Managing Director is Langston James"Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. Funding and

logistical support for thisissue of Earth NegotiationsBulletin is provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry
of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA and DFAIT), the United States (through USAID), the SwissAgency for Environment, Forestsand L andscape
(SAEFL), the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-ENV). General Support for the Bulletin during
2000 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of
Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment
of Finland, the Government of Australia, and BP Amoco. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206.
11SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, M anitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinionsexpressed in the Earth
NegotiationsBulletin are those of the authorsand do not necessarily reflect the viewsof 11SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used
in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercia publications, contact the Managing
Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.callinkages'. The satellite
imagewastaken above Bonn©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth NegotiationsBulletin, send e-mail to theM anaging Director
at <kimo@iisd.org>.




Thursday, 13 July 2000

Vol. 12 No. 140 Page 2

permits an additional tonne of emissions; the sustainable devel op-
ment criterion and itslack of positiveimpactson social and equity
i ssues and technol ogical development; and alikely over-estimation
of forest conservation and biodiversity protection dueto leakage
and afocus on inexpensive sequestration projects.

Party presentations. Sergio Jauregui, Advisor on LULUCF
and Climate Change, Bolivian Vice Ministry of Environment,
spoke on the Noel Kemmpff Mercado Climate Action Project in
Bolivia. He highlighted the two components of emissionsreduc-
tion: eliminating logging, and eliminating conversion of forest to
agricultural land. He said the proj ect addresses |eakage by
providing alternative economic opportunitiesfor the affected
communities. It also addresses theissue of permanence by: assimi-
lating the areaindefinitely into anational park; controlling fires;
including local communitiesin park management; and discour-
aging migration by providing key infrastructure for the local popu-
lation.

Ken Andrasko, Office of Atmospheric Programs, US Environ-
mental Protection Agency, outlined US views on proj ect-based
LULUCEF activities. He noted the importance of LULUCF inthe
global carbon cycle, the fact that projects could be widely distrib-
uted internationally, and the potential for co-benefitsthat may be
larger than the carbon benefit. He argued that the potential prob-
lems of additionality, |eakage and permanence should be addressed
through appropriate rules and project design.

Question-and-answer session: In the ensuing question-and-
answer session, GERMANY asked whether the prospect of carbon
creditsfor emissions avoidance - such as prevention of planned
deforestation - could act asan incentivefor deforestation activities.
In response, Sergio Jauregui said thiswas not aproblemin Bolivia,
where deforestation is primarily due to socio-economic reasons,
and where most peopleinvolved in deforestation would not be
aware of the Kyoto Protocol or carbon credits. He said any attempts
to manipulate the credit system would beidentified at the accredita-
tion stage.

In responseto aquestion from SWITZERLAND on how
compatible Greenpeace’s opposition to LUL UCF projects under
the CDM iswith the objectives of the Protocol, Bill Hare noted that
LULUCEF carbon credits would not be an appropriate means of
achieving stable atmospheric concentrations of CO2, given ques-
tions of permanence and additionality, and said that, based on
current scientific knowledge, emissions reductionswere a safer
way to proceed. He al so suggested that the Protocol was not neces-
sarily the most suitabl e context for addressing in-depth forest
management i ssues. Responding to commentson how best to move
forward, Ken Andrasko said the US supported working in parallel
on thekey issuesrather than addressing one after the other.

NIGERIA questioned whether devel oping countrieswould
benefit from sinks projects under the CDM, and emphasized the
need for social impact assessment of projects’ long-term implica-
tions. Bill Hare suggested that Parties only consider renewable
energy projects under the CDM.

MEXICO commented on theimportance of co-benefitsin sinks
projects. Ken MacDicken agreed, suggesting harmoni zation of
projectswith co-benefit elementsfrom the CBD and GEF
programmes. AUSTRIA underscored therisks of increased forest
losses dueto perverseincentives. In response, Gareth Phillips said
that clear guidelines are necessary to avoid potential deforestation
arising from perverseincentives. Responding to aquestion from

SENEGAL onbaselinesin Bolivia, Sergio Jauregui said the base-
line assumesthat: logging companies continue to expl oit and
farmers continue slash and burn practices; parameters are depen-
dent on therate of logging of nearby forest concessions and histor-
ical land-use trends established by communities; and carbon
monitoring relies on satellite data, datafrom nearby logging
concessions, and permanent plots. AUSTRALIA queried thelack
of carbon projectsin degraded land areasin Africa. Ken
MacDicken responded that restoring degraded savannah lands
using sinks projectswould require the transfer of sophisticated
technology to resolve the problem of water constraints.

GENERAL ACCOUNTING, VERIFICATION AND
REPORTING ISSUES

Workshop Co-Chair Thorgeirsson introduced thistopic, noting
that accounting, verification and reporting represent the backbone
of LULUCF activities.

IPCC OVERVIEW: lan Noble, IPCC Lead Author, noted that
the Special Report had addressed i ssues of accounting, verification
and reporting. He stated that the Revised 1996 Guidelinesfor
National Greenhouse Gas Inventorieswere devised for the
purposes of the FCCC rather than the Protocol, and said an elabora-
tion will be needed. Co-Chair Thorgeirsson highlighted theimpor-
tance of distinguishing between what broad decisions need to be
taken by COP-6, and what i ssues can be dealt with at alater stage.

PRESENTATIONS: ThomasHausler, Remote Sensing Expert
from the Company for Applied Remote Sensing (GAF), presented
on earth observationin the context of LULUCF applications. He
highlighted, inter alia, thereliability and cost benefits of using
remote sensing to provide datafor forest inventories and to monitor
afforestation, reforestation and deforestation at frequent intervals.
He stressed the need for a standardized nomenclature and harmo-
nized technical procedures. He noted, however, that remote sensing
cannot be used to measure carbon stocks, and suggested the use of
appropriate indicators.

lan Carruthers, Australian Greenhouse Office, made a presenta-
tion outlining Australia’'s perspective on carbon accounting for
LULUCEF. Hesaid land areaswould enter into an accounting
systemfor Article 3.3 and 3.4 once eligible LULUCF activities
were established on that land. He suggested that, once theland area
entered into the accounting framework, all changesin greenhouse
gases and carbon stocksfrom all relevant pools should beincluded,
and the land should remain within the system into future commit-
ment periods. He expressed a preference for anarrow approach to
the selection of activities and land-based accounting. He drew
attention to Australia swork on developing anational carbon
accounting system, which he said could be applicableto other
countries.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

GENERAL ACCOUNTING, VERIFICATION AND
REPORTING ISSUES: Participantswill resume consideration of
thismatter at 9:00 am.

KEY ISSUES: Once discussion of general accounting, verifi-
cation and reporting issues has concluded, it isexpected that a
session will be held drawing together important issuesthat have
emerged during thisworkshop. The Co-Chairswill then present
their conclusions on the workshop, and are expected to close the
meeting late afternoon.



